Cyngor Tref Llanandras a Norton PRESTEIGNE AND NORTON TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25TH JANUARY 2023 HELD AT THE ASSEMBLY ROOMS, BROAD STREET, PRESTEIGNE AND ALSO VIA VIDEO CONFERENCING

Present: Cllrs. D. Edwards (Mayor), B. Baynham (Deputy Mayor), T. Owens, R. Bamford, M. Williams, J. Poster, J. Gray, J. Wilding, M. Price, L. Firth.

Apologies: Cllrs. F. Preece, A. Van Huls.

Absent: Cllr. L. Abecasis,

In Attendance: Mrs T. Price, Town Clerk. Members of the public.

Declarations of Interest: Members were requested to declare any personal and/or prejudicial interests they may have in matters to be considered at the meeting in accordance with the terms of the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct Order) (Wales) Order 2008.

Personal: None.

Personal and Prejudicial:

Cllr. R. Bamford, partner of potential contractor re. work for nature reserve.

Cllr. J. Gray, lives immediately adjacent to works re. update on High Street, Presteigne.

MIN 4150 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 21st December, 2022 were approved as a true and accurate record and the Chairman signed the Minutes as such.

The Minutes of the meeting held on 18th January, 2023 were approved as a true and accurate record and the Chairman signed the Minutes as such.

MIN 4151 UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ITEMS AND CLERKS REPORT

- (1) Telephone Banking: Now set up as discussed.
- (2) Town Wifi: It was possible that an extra unit could be added to the Memorial Hall to extend the range of the service.
- (3) Town Investment Plan: Nothing further had been received.
- (4) Allotments: Letters have gone out to all tenants reminding them that the tenancy year was drawing to a close and to let the Clerk know if they wished to give up their plot.
- (5) Website Advertising: Following an initial letter at the end of November a further reminder was sent out on 4th January. Any non-responders would have their advert removed at the end of the month.
- (6) Monthly Planning Call: The Clerk reported that this had been useful this month. The application for the old Depot site had been withdrawn. The Clerk had asked again for a TPO briefing at a future PCC meeting and had also chased up the current enforcement cases in Presteigne.

MIN 4152 FINANCE

(1) Donations: None this month.

(2) Payments: to approve the following payments -

N. Close £10.50

N. Close £105.00 MEADOW ACC

HSBC (bank charges) £8.00

HSBC (bank charges) £8.00 MEADOW ACC

T. Lloyd-John (cleaning) £408.49

RB Landscaping (works to car park, allotments and skateboard steps, inc materials)

£1749.60 MEADOW ACC

Powys County Council (election costs) £1046.14 (debit card)
Welsh Water (Barn) £19.52 MEADOW ACC

Vistaprint (refund R. Bamford - stickers) £23.75 Bosky Trees (tree survey nature reserve) £1008.00

Welsh Water (Hereford Street Toilets) £184.94 (Direct Debit)

Border Janitorial (toilet rolls) £84.54
Welsh Water (Wilson Terrace Toilets) £10.30

Members agreed not to renew the advert for the website in Broad Sheep.

(3) The following receipts were noted:

Allotment Rent £28.00 MEADOW ACCOUNT

Website Advertising £39.00

MIN 4153 PLANNING

(1) Planning Applications: No applications this month.

(2) Planning Decisions: The following decision was noted -

22/2057/TRE Castle Barn, High Street, Presteigne: Consent 3rd January 2023.

- (3) Powys Local Development Plan Update: The Clerk reported that the list of candidate sites was not expected to be available until May/June.
- (4) Tree Preservation Orders: Members noted that the Clerk had again spoken to the Planning Department and asked that the interactive map (link previously circulated) and in fact the whole TPO process be included within a future PCC briefing to Community Councils. This may help everyone understand how best to use the map and also it might bring other Community Councils on board with the need for better information to be readily available.

On applying for TPOs she reported there was much information on the gov.uk website –

<u>Tree Preservation Orders and trees in conservation areas - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)</u>

and also a technical advice note issued by Welsh Government -

https://www.gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-10-tree-preservation-orders

MIN 4154 HIGHWAYS, HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

- (1) Dark Skies/Lighting Update: Members had no objections to the draft lighting policy. Regarding events for the Dark Skies Festival it was agreed that the Town Council was supportive of anything that could be arranged by the two non-Councillor Members of the Working Group.
- (2) Climate Crisis Update: Cllr. Bamford reported the following -

Tree Hub/Giveaway: Four dates had been agreed for the second period in March. Different locations were to be used to maximise take up.

Nature Reserve: Agreed that the Clerk be given delegated authority to commission works/pay invoices etc in consultation with Cllr. Bamford. Latest items were –

- Access gate to school site: Now in place.
- Path works starting soon.
- Pond creation to start in February.
- Trees to be delivered and planted over the next month.
- 4/5th March: Various workshops and events as part of the community consultation.
- Opening Day planned for 3rd June.
- Maintenance Plan: First draft received.
- Training Day for tree pruning arranged for 11th February.
- Tree Survey complete. Very few works identified. Agreed to remove ivy from crown only of tree 31.
 Deadwood to be removed from tree 51. The Clerk would seek quotes for this work to be done as soon as possible.
- Cllr. Bamford supplied a list of quotes for various design elements of the project, explained the
 proposed extra cost for the gate and that the intention if agreed was to seek permission from the
 lottery to use part of the contingency amount to meet the extra cost.

Cllr. Bamford then left the room having declared an interest in this item.

Members agreed to accept the various quotes subject to any excess to the budget being covered by the contingency element of the grant.

Cllr. Bamford returned to the room.

Cllr. Gray left the room having declared an interest in the following item.

- (3) Update on High Street, Presteigne: Cllr. Baynham advised that following the changes made during the height of the covid pandemic it was now intended to make the measures permanent and also to improve pavement/kerbing with the temporary bollards replaced with permanent ones.

 Cllr. Grav returned to the room.
- (4) Update on Welsh Water System Upgrade: Members noted that the necessary works to obtain a phosphate permit were now complete and Welsh Water hoped to receive the necessary permit from Natural Resources Wales in April.
- (5) Concerns re Disabled Access on High Street: Cllrs. Baynham and Firth had both received comments on the difficulties experienced in accessing one of the High Street premises. Members appreciated the difficulties for the management but agreed that the Clerk write to the Manager to inform them of the concerns received and to ask if there was any way of improving the current arrangements.
- (6) Fold Farm Footpath Update: Members noted the latest information and were encouraged that the County Council was intending to recommence DMMO work in the Spring.
- (7) Drainage Concerns, The Slough: Cllr. Baynham informed Members that she had been in touch with the Highways Department and that officers would visit to check and clear and drains and to try to find a solution to the problems.

MIN 4155 NORTON

- (1) Norton Community Trust Update: Cllr. Wilding reported that a meeting was taking place with a contractor on 26th January and that work was expected to start soon.
- (2) Speed Enforcement: Members noted that there seemed to be regular enforcement in Presteigne Road, Knighton and the Clerk was asked to write to ask if while in the area enforcement could also be carried out in Norton and on the Presteigne bypass.

MIN 4156 SITES AND BUILDINGS MATTERS

- (1) Public Conveniences: Nothing to report.
- (2) Allotments: Two plots currently being re-let ready for 25th March.
- (3) Meadows: The following matters were discussed -
 - situation re sheds: Members noted the comments of Mr. O. Rimington and agreed that the sheds remain on site for the time being.
 - bin emptying: Members noted the Clerk's comments on the arrangements for this.
 - removal of dead tree: Members noted that this had been cleared.
 - grass cutting of back field: The Clerk reported that Mr. Graham was in the process of looking into this.
 - conifer cuttings left on Meadow/Play Area: Clerk to ask the County Council Officer if he could ask that these be cleared.
- (4) Uneven Surface Wilson Terrace Play Area: Deferred to February meeting.
- (5) Withy Beds: Nothing to report at present.

MIN 4157 CORRESPONDENCE/GENERAL ITEMS

- (1) Review of need for Town Council Surgeries: Agreed not to re-start the monthly surgeries.
- (2) Attendance at Remembrance Sunday Services: Deferred due to the absence of Cllr. Abecasis.
- (3) Presteigne Post Office Arrangements: Cllr. Baynham reported on the comments she had received regarding opening and staffing arrangements. Members were mindful of the need to preserve the service in the town and agreed to monitor and note any concerns.
- (4) Town Clock: Cllr. Baynham reported that the clock was currently not being wound and that there was a need to ensure the County Council carried out any necessary maintenance and repairs. Cllr. Bamford suggested that Mr. O. Rimington might be willing to wind the clock and agreed to ask him.
- (5) East Radnor Leisure Centre: Cllr. Baynham reported on the first working group meeting with matters discussed including better publicity of classes and events to encourage use and the possibility of installing solar panels. A representative from the Leisure Centre would be invited to join the group.

 Members noted the email from Builth Wells Town Council and Cllr. Baynham agreed to attend any public

MIN 4158 COUNTY COUNCILLOR REPORTS

Cllr. Baynham reported the following: -

- Winter Maintenance and Emergency Planning Briefings
- Treasury Management Briefing

meeting it might organise.

- Budget Meetings to be held in the coming weeks.
- Site Visit at Lugg View: Drainage engineer to discuss possible changes to fencing at bottom of site. Existing debris to be cleared from fence.

Cllr. Edwards reported additional items:-

- Motorbike Safety Course
- Older Driver's Course.

MIN 4159 URGENT BUSINESS INFORMATION

- (1) Knighton Hospital: Cllr. Edwards informed Members of the recent comments and reports on social media and on the statement subsequently issued by Powys Teaching Health Board. A briefing meeting had now been set up by the Board for 31st January. Cllrs. Baynham and Edwards would be attending in their capacity as County Councillors but the Town Council had also been invited to send a representative. Members were asked to contact the Clerk if they wished to attend.
- (2) Winding of Town Clock: Cllr. Bamford reported that Mr. Rimington had agreed to wind the clock.

The meeting closed at 9.04pm.